ALASKA STATE LEG SLATURE
HOUSE HEALTH AND SOCI AL SERVI CES STANDI NG COW TTEE
February 5, 2013
3:07 p.m

VEMBERS PRESENT

Representative Pete Higgins, Chair
Representative Wes Keller, Vice Chair
Represent ati ve Benj am n Nageak
Representative Lance Pruitt
Representative Lora Reinbold
Represent ati ve Paul Seaton
Representative Geran Tarr

VEMBERS ABSENT
Al'l nenbers present
COW TTEE CALENDAR

HOUSE BI LL NO. 88

“"An Act changing the terms 'nental retardation' and 'nentally

retarded,' and meki ng conform ng changes, in Al aska Stat utes.

- MOVED CSHB 88(HSS) OQUT OF COW TTEE
PREVI QUS COW TTEE ACTI ON
BILL: HB 88

SHORT TI TLE: STATUTORY REFS TO MENTAL RETARDATI ON
SPONSOR(s): REPRESENTATI VE(s) M LLETT

01/ 28/ 13 (H READ THE FIRST TIME - REFERRALS
01/ 28/ 13 (H) HSS
02/ 05/ 13 (H) HSS AT 3: 00 PM CAPI TOL 106

W TNESS REG STER

REPRESENTATI VE CHARI SSE M LLETT

Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON  STATEMENT: I ntroduced HB 88 as the sponsor of
bill.

VASI LI OS G ALOPSCS, St af f
Representative Charisse Mllett

t he

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -1- February 5, 2013



Al aska State Legislature

Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Presented HB 88 on behalf of the sponsor,
Representative MIllett.

W LDA LAUGHLI N, Special Assistance

O fice of the Conm ssioner

Department of Health and Social Services (DHSS)

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT:  Answered questions during discussion of HB
88.

STAClE KRALY, Chief Assistant Attorney GCeneral - Statew de
Section Supervisor

Human Servi ces Section

Cvil Division (Juneau)

Depart ment of Law (DQL)

Juneau, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Answer ed questions during discussion of HB
88.

M LLI E RYAN, Executive Director

REACH, | nc.

Juneau, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in strong support for HB 88.

CHRI' S BRENNER
Juneau, Al aska
PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 88.

KI M CHAMPNEY, Presi dent

Al aska Associ ati on on Devel opnent Disabilities (AADD)
Juneau, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 88.

ERI C GEBHARDT, Chair

Governor's Council on Disabilities and Special Education
Anchor age, Al aska

PCSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 88.

RI CK NELSON, Vice Chair

Governor's Council on Disabilities and Special Education
Anchor age, Al aska

PCOSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 88.

KALEENE LAMB
Wal | Busters Advocacy G oup, Access Al aska

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 2- February 5, 2013



Fai r banks, Al aska
POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 88.

CAROLE ANDERSON, Chair

Chal | enge Al aska Board of Directors

Anchor age, Al aska

POSI TI ON STATEMENT: Testified in support of HB 88.

ACTI ON NARRATI VE

3:07:59 PM

CHAIR PETE HIGA NS called the House Health and Social Services
St andi ng Committee neet i ng to or der at 3: 07 p. m
Representatives Higgins, Pruitt, Nageak, Keller, Tarr, Seaton,

and Rei nbold were present at the call to order.

HB 88- STATUTORY REFS TO MENTAL RETARDATI ON

3:09: 07 PM

CHAIR H GA NS announced that the only order of business would be
HOUSE BILL NO 88, "An Act <changing the terns 'nenta
retardation' and 'nentally retarded,' and making conform ng
changes, in Alaska Statutes."

3:09: 34 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER nobved to adopt the proposed committee
substitute (CS) for HB 88, |abeled 28-LS0400\U, M schel, 2/5/13,
as the working docunent. There being no objection, it was so
or der ed.

3:09: 58 PM

REPRESENTATI VE CHARISSE M LLETT, Alaska State Legislature
stated that both proposed HB 88 and the proposed CS, Version U,
woul d change the use of the clinical terns "nental retardation”
and "mentally retarded” in Alaska statutes. She decl ared that,
as these have now becone derogatory terns, proposed HB 88 would
change this language to a nore inclusive and respectful |anguage
for people with disabilities. She referenced proposed HB 88 as
the "people first” bill, and pointed out that this |anguage had
been changed in 40 other states.

3:10: 59 PM

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 3- February 5, 2013



VASILIOS d ALOPSCS, Staff, Representative Charisse Mllett,
Al aska State Legislature, explained that the two fundanental
changes contained in the proposed commttee substitute, Version
U were on page 14 and page 15. Directing attention to page 14,
line 23, he stated that this would clarify that the intent of
the rule of construction by the legislator was not to change the
di agnosis for "intellectual or developnmental disabilities," or
the conditions of conpetency before courts. He expl ai ned that
"this is a change of labels,” as the intent of the original term
had now beconme a derogation. He enphasized that Version U did
not change or constrict the provisions of state services or the
scope of the Department of Law. He noved on to expl ain page 14,
line 29, which dealt with the changes to I anguage in the Al aska
Adm ni strative Codes, and clarified that there would not be any
fiscal burden.

3:14: 06 PM

CHAIR HHGE NS, in response to M. @ alopsos, asked for a broad
overvi ew of the proposed bill.

MR. G ALOPSCS expl ained that proposed HB 88 identified the term
"mentally retarded” in the Al aska statutes and substituted that

term with "intellectual and developnental disabilities.” He
pointed out that nothing was changed wth regard to the
conditions or standards of conpetency. He enphasized that only

t he | abel woul d be changed.
3:15:10 PM

REPRESENTATI VE PRUI TT, referring to the analysis of the
Department of Health and Social Services fiscal note prepared by
Melissa Stone, [Included in nmenbers' packets] asked if this had
been addressed by the proposed CS, Version U

REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT replied that the new regul ation | anguage
in Version U did address this fiscal note analysis, and would be
reflected in a new fiscal note.

3:16: 47 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked i f t he repl acenent term

"intellectual and devel opnental disabilities" would require both
disabilities to qualify, as it did not read "and/or".

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 4- February 5, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE M LLETT replied that only the term was repl aced,
and it did not expand the definition, or change the civil or
crimnal code. She stated that there was not any inplication
for proof.

3:18: 21 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked for the Departnent of Law to put on
the record that it was not necessary to fit into both of the
cat egori es.

3:19: 06 PM

W LDA LAUGHLI N, Special Assistance, Ofice of the Comm ssioner
Departnment of Health and Social Services (DHSS), clarified that
Version U would "zero out both of our fiscal notes.”

3:20: 06 PM

STACIE KRALY, Chief Assistant Attorney GCeneral - Statew de
Section Supervisor, Human Services Section, GCivil Division
(Juneau), Departnent of Law (DOL), in response to an earlier

guestion by Representative Seaton, said that "historically the
phrase 'nental retardation' would enconpass both individuals
with nmental and devel opnental disabilities.” She clarified that
this substitution of term was not neant to expand or change the
definition, and woul d enconpass both conditions.

3:21: 02 PM

REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that, as the term had
previously covered intellectual or developnental, it was not
necessary to now have both intellectual and devel opnent
disabilities in order to qualify.

M5. KRALY, in response, opined that this was sinply a swtch of
phrase.

3:22:05 PM
REPRESENTATI VE SEATON asked to clarify that this was not a
contraction. He noted that having this on the record was very

i mportant for |egislative history.

3:22:26 PM

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 5- February 5, 2013



REPRESENTATI VE TARR, directing attention to the fiscal notes,
asked if a fiscal note was necessary fromthe Division of Senior
and Disabilities Services in DHSS.

M5. LAUGHLIN replied that there was not a cost to that division.

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked if there was a cost to the Governor's
Council on Disabilities & Special Education.

M5. LAUGHLIN, in response, said that there was not a cost.
3:22:55 PM

REPRESENTATI VE  KELLER asked to clarify that "physi cal "
disabilities were not included in this bill.

M5. KRALY expressed her agreenent.
3:23:28 PM

CHAI R HI GA NS opened public testinony.
3:24: 04 PM

M LLI E RYAN, Executive Director, REACH, Inc., stated that REACH
and the 400 individuals with disabilities that REACH served,
strongly supported the proposed bill. She said that replacing
hurtful |anguage was nore than semantics. She shared that a
change for the way we talk to people was a first step toward
valuing them as contributing nenbers of the comunity. She
offered her belief that hurtful |anguage could Ilimt the
expectations that people had for thensel ves. She decl ared that
many nore federal and state agencies were enbracing these
changes in | anguage.

3:25: 26 PM

CHRI S BRENNER shared that he was 23 years old and had been a
client at REACH since he was 6 years old and | abeled as nentally
retarded. He stated that since that tine he had been made fun
of and treated differently. He expressed that the | abel upset
him and that he did not I|ike the word. He pointed out that
nost peopl e associated the |label "nmentally retarded" as dumb, or
not as smart or capable as everyone el se. He declared that he
was as capable of success as others, noting that he worked ful

time, paid rent and taxes, and was his own conservator. He
shared that nost of his friends felt judged and | ooked down upon

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 6- February 5, 2013



because of this |abel. He strongly urged for this change in
terns, and he stated:

It will nake people feel better about thenselves, it
will make it so that sonme younger people will not have
to grow up with this |abel, and feel judged. ' m not
dunmb, ny friends aren't dunb. "' m independent and
this word makes people feel deneaned and that they're
not i ndependent. This word is wong and it needs to
be changed, so we can change peoples' |ives.
3:27:43 PM

KIM CHAMPNEY, President, Alaska Association on Devel opnment
Disabilities (AADD), reported that AADD represented about 40
provi der agencies in Al aska. She declared that AADD
"whol eheartedl y" supported proposed HB 88. She noted that AADD
al ready used this | anguage with the provi der agencies.

3:28:52 PM

ERI C GEBHARDT, Chair, Governor's Council on D sabilities and
Speci al Education, explained that the Council advised the state
on issues that affected individuals wth devel opnental
di sabilities. He declared that the mssion of the Council was
to create change that would inprove the lives of individuals
with disabilities. He declared that the Council supported HB

88. He affirmed that |anguage could be a powerful tool to
i nspire, noti vat e, and uplift. He pointed out t hat
"retardation” was wused as an insult and as a negative
st er eot ype. He reported that "nental retardation” was an

exanple for the negative evolution of a word, as it had been
created to replace other negative stereotype words which had
characterized and insulted people. He asked the commttee to
"renmenber that as |eaders you can also influence policies that
will elimnate stereotypes that determ ne where a person will be
educat ed, encourage high expectations  of students wth
disabilities, and elimnate barriers to graduation.” He noted
that many states had changed their statutes and were now
repl acing "ol d negative | anguage" with "people first |anguage."”

3:33: 25 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR asked if the Council had outreach resources
to educate students about the inportance of | anguage.

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE -7- February 5, 2013



MR. GEBHARDT, in response, said that there was the capacity to
communi cate with organizations, and the Council did help to
create, though he was wunsure if there were resources for
printing and distribution.

3:34: 51 PM

REPRESENTATI VE TARR declared that she would |like to see nore
outreach for change.

3:35: 07 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD suggested that this could be tied in
with the anti-bullying initiatives.

MR. GEBHARDT voiced his agreenent that negative |anguage was a
form of bullying. He nentioned that student governnents had
al so discussed elimnation of the term"retardation"” in schools.
3:36: 28 PM

RI CK NELSON, Vice Chair, Governor's Council on D sabilities and
Speci al Education, offered his personal story and said that he

supported HB 88 "with a passion.” He shared that, as he had a
devel opnental disability, he had always been teased, mnade fun
of, and called retarded. He declared that he had always tried

to fight the battles to not be called that. He clarified that
he was a very intellectual person with a disability, and he did
not want to be |abeled as sonething that he was not. He
announced that he was graduating from University of Al aska
Anchorage (UAA) in May, with a grade point average of 3.2, and a
Bachel or's degree in business admnistration and managenent. He
endorsed the <change of term from nental retardation to
intellectual and devel opnental disabilities.

3:40:49 PM
KALEENE LAMB, Wall Busters Advocacy Goup, Access Al aska,

of fered her personal story, and shared that she was teased as a
child. She expressed her support for HB 88, so that kids would

not have to go through this sane teasing. She reflected that
she could not go to school, and it took her "a long tinme just to
get where |I'm at now. " She acknow edged that although it was

just a label, and she expressed her dislike for |abels, she
woul d appreciate a change of this |abel.

3:42:35 PM

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 8- February 5, 2013



CAROLE ANDERSQN, Chair, Challenge Al aska Board of Directors,
affirmed that |anguage was a powerful tool that could inspire
and notivate, or it could isolate, bully, and cause enotional
damage. She pointed to the negative influences and associ ated

stigma fromthe term"retardation.” She shared a quote: "words
are a form of action, capable of influencing change." She
reported that the generalized term "nmental retardation,” was
characterized as havi ng sufficiently i npai red cognitive

function, and historically defined as having an 1Q below 70.
She referred to the negative word evolution, or the "euphem sm
treadm I l," which she defined as the eventual use as an insult
for any word used to describe a condition. She pointed out that
the term "nental retardation” was now recogni zed as di sparagi ng,

and the term "intellectual disability" or intellectually
chal | enged” was now preferred. She reported that many states
were now using "people first"™ l|anguage for new or rewitten

statutes, and she requested that Al aska follow this |ead.

3:46: 38 PM

M5. ANDERSON, in response to Representative Tarr, said that she
supported proposed HB 88, and she asked (indisc) if Rosa' s Law
was an inspiration for the proposed bill.

3:48:12 PM

CHAIR HI GA NS cl osed public testinony.

3:48: 30 PM

The committee took a brief at-ease.

3:50: 38 PM

CHAIR HGE NS call ed the comm ttee back to order.

REPRESENTATI VE PRUI TT asked to confirm that the upcom ng fiscal
not es woul d address Version U.

M5. LAUGHLIN, in response to Representative Pruitt, confirned
that Version U wuld create zero fiscal notes.

3:51:49 PM

REPRESENTATI VE KELLER noved to report CSHB 88, Version 28-
LS0400\U, M schel, 2/5/13, out of commttee wth individual

HOUSE HSS COWM TTEE - 9- February 5, 2013



recommendati ons and the acconpanying zero fiscal notes. Ther e
bei ng no objection, CSHB 88(HSS) was noved from the House Health
and Social Services Standing Commttee.

3:52:19 PM

REPRESENTATI VE REI NBOLD thanked Representative MIllett, REACH,
Chal | enge Al aska, and the brave testifiers for bringing this

bill forward, as it may not have otherw se caught the attention
of the Legislature. She opined that this bill would nake the
"world just a little bit nore friendly place.”

3:53: 34 PM

ADJ QURNVENT

There being no further business before the commttee, the House
Health and Social Services Standing Conmittee neeting was
adjourned at 3:53 p. m

HOUSE HSS COW TTEE - 10- February 5, 2013



